
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person needing assistance to participate in this meeting, should contact the Office of the County Clerk at 
(920)746 2200. Notification 72 hours prior to a meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to that meeting. 

AGENDA Posted , 2017 by    

 

 

            Notice of Public Meeting 

Tuesday, December 12, 2017 

10:00 a.m. 

   
ADMINISTRATIVE 

COMMITTEE 

   
Door County Government Center 

Chambers Room, 1st floor 
421 Nebraska Street, Sturgeon Bay, WI 

 

  Oversight for Child Support, Clerk of Court, Circuit Court, Corporation Counsel, County Administrator, County Clerk, District Attorney, Human Resources, Register in Probate, and Veteran’s Service Office  

            

AGENDA 

1. Call Meeting to Order 

2. Establish a Quorum ~ Roll Call 

3. Adopt Agenda / Properly Noticed 

4. Approve Minutes of November 7, 2017 Regular Administrative Committee Meeting, and the November 14, 2017 Special 
Administrative Committee Meeting  

5. Correspondence 
6. Public Comment 
7. Old Business 
8. New Business (Review / Action) 

A. Clerk of Courts 
 Contract for Collection Services 

B. County Administrator / Human Resources 

 Discuss / Take Action on Proposed Re-organization of Airport & Parks 

 Discuss / Take Action on Position Changes in Land Use Services  

 Discussion on Staffing Levels in Human Services  

 DCES Captain Position  

 Revision of Employee Handbook & Administrative Manual 

 Adjustment of Compensation Plan 

 Request to Refill: Legal Administrative Assistant, Corporation Counsel 
 Letter of Resignation – Erik Aleson, Airport & Parks Director 
 Letter of Retirement: 
• Marsh Kurth, Public Health Aide / Medical Assistant 
• Audrey Forslund, Land Use Services GIS Mapping Specialist 
• Marie Larson, Corporation Counsel Legal Administrative Assistant 

 Completion of Introductory Period: 
• Nicole Kahler, Human Services Community Support Program Case Manager 
• Danielle Nyman, Human Services Children and Families Case Manager 
• Laura Hall, Human Services Children and Families Case Manager 

 Personnel Transactions 

C. Corporation Counsel 
 Intergovernmental Agreement – Sturgeon Bay Fiber Optic Community Area Network/Utility 
 Intergovernmental Agreement – Kewaunee County – Psychiatrist 
 Intergovernmental Agreement – Village of Egg Harbor - Library 
 Opioid Litigation 

9. Matters to be Placed on a Future Agenda or Referred to a Committee, Official, or Employee 
10.Vouchers, Claims and Bills 

11.Next Meeting Date(s):   Regular Meeting – January 16, 2018 – 10:00 a.m. 

12.Meeting Per Diem Code 

13.Adjourn         

Deviation from order shown may occur 

 



 

 

             
MINUTES 

Tuesday, November 7, 2017 
 
 

   
ADMINISTRATIVE 

COMMITTEE 

   
Door County Government Center 

Chambers Room, 1st floor 
421 Nebraska Street, Sturgeon Bay, WI 

 

  Oversight for Child Support, Clerk of Court, Circuit Court, Corporation Counsel, County Administrator, County Clerk, District Attorney, Human Resources, Register in Probate, and Veteran’s Service Office  

            

Call Meeting to Order 
The Tuesday, November 7, 2017 Administrative Committee Meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. by Chairman 
David Lienau. 
 
Establish a Quorum ~ Roll Call 
Members present:  Dan Austad, Ken Fisher, Kathy Schultz, Richard Virlee,  

    Joel Gunnlaugsson, David Lienau, and John Neinas. 
 
Others present:  Supervisor Susan Kohout, Supervisor Laura Vlies-Wotachek, Administrator 
Ken Pabich, Finance Director Mark Janiak, Interim ES Director Jeff Roemer, County Clerk 
Jill Lau, Media Rep Peter Devlin, and public. 
 
Adopt Agenda / Properly Noticed 
Motion by Schultz, seconded by Austad to approve the agenda.  Motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
Approve Minutes of October 17, 2017 Regular Administrative Committee Meeting, 
October 17, 2017 Joint Administrative/Finance Committee Meeting, and the October 24, 2017 Special 
Administrative Committee Meeting 
Motion by Fisher, seconded by Gunnlaugsson to approve the minutes of the October 17, 2017 regular meeting, the 
October 17, 2017 joint Administrative/Finance meeting, and the October 24, 2017 special meeting.  Motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote. 

 
Correspondence 

 Supervisor Fisher questioned a paper that was left on the table comparing the Emergency Services 
Departments budget over the past few years.  Unknown as to who compiled the paper or who distributed the 
paper. 
 

Public Comment 
No one from the public commented. 
 
Old Business 
New Business (Review / Action) 
County Board 
Review/Recommend Changes to County Board Rules of Order 
Information included in the meeting packet was reviewed.  CC Thomas reviewed the changes and noted the Rules 
can be changed at any time by a majority vote of a quorum at county board.  The rules, outside of compensation, go 
into effective once adopted.   
 
Motion by Austad, seconded by Fisher to approve the Rules of Order as presented.  Motion carried by unanimous 
voice vote. 
 
Draft Resolution – Supervisor Compensation and Reimbursement 
Information included in the meeting packet was reviewed.  CC Thomas reviewed state statutes related to 
compensation.  CC Thomas explained the maximum per diem per day that can be earned by the county board.  
Thomas is comfortable with retaining the status quo of the maximum per day an individual could earn for meetings 
that has been in place since 1999 of up to $200/day.  Chairman Lienau suggested retaining the maximum daily rate 
of $225 for meetings and specific conference attendance.  Administrator Pabich reviewed the fiscal impact of the 
proposed changes and noted they increase the county board budget by $23,500.  The maximum of $200 per day 
remains in effect for all other meetings and trainings. 

“These minutes 
have not been 
reviewed by the 

oversight 
committee and 
are subject to 

approval at the 
next regular 
committee 
meeting.” 

Page 2 of 72



 

 
Motion by Fisher, seconded by Gunnlaugsson to adopt the changes and move them on to county board.  Motion 
carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
CC Thomas will revise Addendum A to the resolution accordingly.  No changes will be made to the budget and, if 
needed, funds will be taken from the contingency fund to cover the fiscal impact of the changes. 
 
Corporation Counsel 
Knowles-Nelson Stewardship Program - §23.0917(5t), Wis. Stats – TNC’s Proposed Acquisition of 362 Acres 
in the Town of Baileys Harbor 
CC Thomas distributed a map to committee members showing the location of the property.  Typically the county has 
not taken a position in favor or against which the DNR may consider or may be ignored.  Area proposed is 
surrounded by state owned property and near Cana Island.  The land is forested land.  No action taken. 
 
Opioid Litigation 
CC Thomas reviewed and signed off on the complaint.  The complaint will be filed in the Eastern District of 
Wisconsin this morning. 
 
§59.11(1)(a)&(b), Wis. Stats. Annual Meeting 
FYI. 
 
County Administrator 
FYI: Out-of-State Travel:  Final Inspection of New Ambulance, Oct 24-26, Columbus, OH - Aaron LeClair & 
Chris Hecht 
FYI.  Travel was to inspect new ambulances which are near completion. 
 
FYI: Out-of-State Travel:  Nat’l Assoc. of Extension 4-H Agents, Nov. 13-17, Indianapolis, IN – Dawn 
VandeVoort 
FYI.  Paid for mostly by state and grant dollars. 
 
County Website Videos – CGI Video Program 
There are a series of videos on the home page of the county website.  This proposal is to update the videos on the 
website.  There is no cost to the county.  Committee agrees to have Administrator Pabich proceed with the video 
program. 
 
Joint Meeting with Kewaunee County 
Administrator Pabich explained within the state budget passed there was a provision for counties to share or partner 
for services with other counties.  Joint services are now allowed.  Pabich has been meeting with Kewaunee County 
Administrator Scott Feldt to review potential shared services.  It was suggested a joint committee meeting of the 
respective administrative committees be held in December or January.  This would be an initial meeting to discuss 
the concept and determine if there is interest.  Committee members agreed to a meeting; Administrator Pabich will 
arrange. 
 
Human Resources 

Resolution - Door County Performance-Based Compensation System 2018 Increases 

Administrator Pabich reviewed the proposed changes and noted the evaluation questions will be shortened and an 
extra level has been added.  This is similar to what has been adopted the past two years.  The Pay Plan is still valid; 
no aging of the plan will be performed. Wage increases allow the county to stay competitive with wages.  Increase 
range from 1.75% to 2.5% 

 

Motion by Fisher, seconded by Austad to approve the 2018 increases as presented.  Motion carried by unanimous 
voice vote.   

 

Request to Refill: Paramedic – Emergency Services   

Emergency Services Committee recommends the refill.  The vacancy is due to a termination. 

 

Motion by Schultz, seconded by Gunnlaugsson to approve the request to refill the Paramedic – Emergency 
Services position.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Page 3 of 72



 

 
 
Request to Refill: Administrative Assistant 2 – Highway Department 
The vacancy is due to a retirement.  Intent is to get the position posted and a person in place prior to the current 
employee leaving.   
 
Motion by Neinas, seconded by Gunnlaugsson to approve the request to refill the Administrative Assistant 2 – 
Highway Department position.  Supervisor Fisher questioned if the position needs to be refilled or if the position 
could be absorbed into the Finance Department.  Administrator Pabich explained the Finance Department currently 
houses a Highway financial position and this request is significantly different from that position.  Motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Letter of Retirement – Myra Lagerman – Highway Dept.  
FYI. 
 
FYI: Personnel Transactions 
Reviewed.   
 
Matters to be Placed on a Future Agenda or Referred to a Committee, Official, or Employee 
Supervisor Neinas requested when exit interviews are placed on the agenda they are presented before requests to 
refill.   
 
Vouchers, Claims and Bills 
Reviewed. 
 
Next Meeting Date(s) 
Regular Meeting – December 19, 2017 – 10:00 a.m. 
 
Meeting Per Diem Code 
711. 
 
Adjourn 
Motion by Fisher, seconded by Virlee to adjourn.  Time: 10:02 a.m.  Motion carried by voice vote. 

 
Respectfully submitted by Jill M. Lau, County Clerk  

 

Page 4 of 72



 

 

             
MINUTES 

Tuesday, November 14, 2017 

   
ADMINISTRATIVE 

COMMITTEE 

   
Door County Government Center 

Chambers Room, 1st floor 
421 Nebraska Street, Sturgeon Bay, WI 

 

  Oversight for Child Support, Clerk of Court, Circuit Court, Corporation Counsel, County Administrator, County Clerk, District Attorney, Human Resources, Register in Probate, and Veteran’s Service Office  

            

 

Call Meeting to Order 
The Tuesday, November 14, 2017 Administrative Committee Meeting was called to order at 8: 30 a.m. by Chairman 
David Lienau. 
 
Establish a Quorum ~ Roll Call 
Members present:  Dan Austad, Ken Fisher, Kathy Schultz, Richard Virlee,  

    David Lienau, John Neinas, and Joel Gunnlaugsson. 
 
Others present:  Administrator Ken Pabich, Finance Director Mark Janiak, Human Services 
Director Joe Krebsbach, County Clerk Jill Lau, and Media Rep Peter Devlin. 
 
Adopt Agenda / Properly Noticed 
Motion by Fisher, seconded by Austad to approve the agenda.  Motion carried by unanimous 
voice vote. 

 
 Correspondence 
 No correspondence was presented. 
 

Public Comment 
No one from the public commented. 
 
New Business (Review / Action) 

 Human Resources 

 Letter of Resignation – AODA Counselor, Brenda Franco 

 Request to Refill: AODA Counselor 

 Administrator Pabich explained this is a matter of timing.  The resignation was received after the last committee 
meeting.  The AODA position carries a large case load.  Pabich noted this is a required position and the need to 
start the refill process as soon as possible is of utmost importance.   

  

 Motion by Gunnlaugsson, seconded by Fisher to accept the resignation and approve the request to refill the AODA 
Counselor position as soon as possible.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

 

Matters to be Placed on a Future Agenda or Referred to a Committee, Official, or Employee 
Supervisor Neinas asked that a future agenda include an item with comparison of Door County’s Human Services 
Department to neighboring counties including Kewaunee, Oconto, and Marinette to include information about staffing 
and turn-over rates for the past three years.   
 

Next Meeting Date(s) 
Regular Meeting – December 12, 2017 – 10:00 a.m. 
 

 Adjourn 
Motion by Fisher, seconded by Schultz to adjourn.  Time: 8:35 a.m.  Motion carried by voice vote. 

 
Respectfully submitted by Jill M. Lau, County Clerk  

 

                                                                    

 

“These minutes 
have not been 
reviewed by the 

oversight 
committee and 
are subject to 

approval at the 
next regular 
committee 
meeting.” 

Page 5 of 72



Page 6 of 72



Updated: 6/12/2015 - 1 -  

State of Wisconsin 

Department of Revenue 

State Debt Collection Agreement 

Introduction 
This agreement between the ______________________________________________, (hereafter 
referred to as “agency”) and the Wisconsin Department of Revenue (hereafter referred to as 
“department”) will set forth the requirements and expectations of both agencies relating to the 
department providing debt collection services for the agency under sec. 71.93 (8), Wis. Stats.   

Statutory Authority 
The department is authorized pursuant to sec. 71.93(8), Wis. Stats., to enter into a written agreement 
to have the department collect any amount owed to the government agency.   

Duties of the Agency 
1. Unless stated and agreed to separately, debt sent to the department for collection must be 

greater than $50.00, and shall be reduced to a judgment prior to referral of the debt, unless the 
agency has provided the debtor with reasonable notice and an opportunity to be heard with 
regard to the debt.   

2. The agency shall send unpaid debt to the department for collection when the debt is more than 
90 days past due, unless the agency is negotiating a repayment agreement with the debtor, the 
debtor has filed bankruptcy, the debtor has objected to the basis of the debt and the agency is 
responding to the objection, or the agency has negotiated a waiver of the time period or debt 
type from the Secretary of the department. 

3. At least 30 days prior to referral of the debt to the department, the agency shall send notice to 
the debtor of the agency’s intention to refer the debt to the department for collection.  The 
notice must state the nature and amount of the debt, identify the agency to whom the debt is 
owed, advise the debtor that collection costs will be assessed once the debt is referred to the 
department, and inform the debtor of the debtor’s right to appeal.  Any appeal periods must 
have expired and all disputes resolved prior to referral of debt to the department. 

4. The agency shall send the following file updates in an electronic format: 
a. New Debts:  The agency shall furnish information using the department’s prescribed file 

layout.  Each debtor must have a unique agency identifier and each debt must have an 
agency debt number.   

b. Debt Updates:  Any non-monetary updates to the debt amount or recall of the debt 
must be transmitted to the department, using the department’s prescribed file layout, 
within 24 hours of receipt.  Changes to the balance may include estimated assessments 
replaced by actual information, debts reduced by compromise agreement, or 
administrative adjustments.  Any payments must be remitted to the department for 
posting to the department’s collection case.  The agency is responsible for refunding the 
collection fee to the debtor, if appropriate, on recalled debts. 

Page 7 of 72



Updated: 6/12/2015 - 2 -  

5. The agency agrees to adjust to zero any debts certified to the department’s agency setoff 
system either through the Tax Refund Intercept Program (TRIP) application, state agency 
mainframe or CCAP.  Through this agreement, the department will offset refunds to the 
agency’s debts through the department’s collection system. 

6. Once debt is referred to the department for collection, the agency shall discontinue billing 
statements, demand letters, and active collection efforts.  The agency shall direct all debtor 
calls or requests regarding collection of the debt to the department. 

7. Once a debt is referred to the department for collection, the agency shall forward any 
payments received to the department for processing.  Department collection costs must be 
paid even if the debtor sends full payment of the debt to the agency.   

8. If the debt is compromised or settled, the agency shall contact the department to determine 
the amount of the department’s collection costs that must be remitted to the department.  The 
agency shall be responsible for any department collection costs remaining when the agency 
fails to consider department collection costs when accepting payments from the debtor or 
compromising debt. 

9. Correspondence and telephone inquiries received that relate to the validity of the debt shall be 
forwarded to the agency for a timely response.  The agency must have resources available to 
assist debtors and department collectors with debt-related issues.   

10. If the agency fails to provide accurate and timely updates to the debt and the result is an 
overpayment of the debt, the debt shall be returned to the agency for a refund to the debtor.  
The agency shall refund the debtor the amount of overpayment received plus the department 
collection costs, if appropriate.    

11. If a payment or refund setoff has been posted to a debt and it is later determined that the 
payment or refund setoff was in excess of the debt owed to the agency, it is the agency’s 
responsibility to refund such excess to the debtor.  If at the time of payment or refund setoff, 
the debtor had a debt with the agency but the agency did not adjust the debt to zero, it is the 
agency’s responsibility to refund the administrative fee to the debtor.  

12. Payments and refund setoffs that occur because of erroneous identification information 
provided by the agency may be corrected by the department and it is the agency’s 
responsibility to pay any collection fees or amounts involved may be reversed.   

13. The agency shall be responsible and liable for any claims or lawsuits made against the 
department arising from collection of a debt that is alleged to be incorrect or not owed by the 
debtor.  

14. The agency agrees to maintain the confidentiality of all accounts, correspondence, documents 
and any other related information, which may be obtained from or furnished by the 
department.  If a third party is used by the agency to manage the debts referred to the 
department, the third party must sign an agreement with the department and will be bound by 
the same confidentiality requirements.  Any unauthorized use or disclosure of such 
information, or inadequate procedures for safeguarding the confidentiality of such information, 
constitutes grounds for immediate termination of this agreement.  

15. The agency shall review reports transmitted, reconcile accounts and notify the department 
within 60 days of any discrepancies. 

Page 8 of 72



Updated: 6/12/2015 - 3 -  

16. The agency shall have technical staff available to maintain electronic file layouts, electronic 
reports, and other requirements as needed.  Agency and department contact information will 
be periodically updated. 

17. The agency and the department can agree to other collection services, such as sending notices, 
providing the opportunity to be heard, and filing and managing bankruptcy claims. 

Duties of the Department 
 

1. The department shall take all reasonable and cost-effective actions to collect referred debts.  
Collection efforts may include, but are not limited to: 

a. Identify assets available for satisfaction of debts 
b. Send demand letters  
c. Subpoena records 
d. Setoff refunds 
e. Negotiate and monitor payment plans 
f. Levy assets 
g. Certify wages 

2. The Secretary of the department may waive the referral of certain types of debts. 
3. The department shall collect debts and assess interest in the same manner that it collects taxes 

and assesses interest under secs. 71.82(2), 71.91, 71.92, and 73.03 (20), Wis. Stats.  
4. The department shall add an administrative fee to each debt referred for collection.  The 

administrative fee is reviewed periodically and may be adjusted up or down to cover all costs to 
the department to administer this program.  

5. The department shall apply payments made on delinquencies first in discharging costs, then 
penalties and interest, with the balance applied to principal.  Once a payment or refund setoff 
has been posted, the agency shall be notified of such postings. 

6. The department shall collect against debtors who owe multiple debts to various government 
entities. Proceeds collected apply first to debts owed to the department, then to debts owed 
for child support, then debts owed to state agencies, including the courts and the Legislature, in 
the order that the debts were referred, then to debts owed to authorities and local units of 
government in the order that the debts were referred. 

7. The department shall send a Statement of Account to the debtor monthly as long as there is 
account activity, such as a payment or credit to the account.  If there is no recent activity, a 
Statement of Account is sent at least once every six months.   Interest is added to the account 
monthly. 

8.  The department may suspend collection action on an agency account temporarily if the debtor 
raises concerns that need to be addressed by the agency, such as the validity of the debt or 
whether the debt was previously paid.  The debtors shall be advised that they must contact the 
agency, and department collection action will resume in 30 days unless the agency contacts the 
department to request additional time or recalls the debt. 

9. If a payment, refund, or refundable credit is determined to be in error or is otherwise adjusted 
after posting to an agency debt, the department may reverse the credit with that agency.  

Page 9 of 72



Updated: 6/12/2015 - 4 -  

10. The department shall close out any debt with a balance that falls below $20.00 and return the 
debt to the agency as too small to pursue. 

11. The department shall pursue debt collection until the debt is collected in full or the department 
has determined the debt   is uncollectible.  

12. The department shall suspend collection action on debts if the debtor files bankruptcy.  It is the 
agency’s responsibility to pursue a bankruptcy claim, if appropriate.  The agency has the right to 
recall a debt when bankruptcy has been filed if it wishes to pursue separately. 

13. The department shall send the following update files: 
a. Debt Response File -   The department shall notify the agency whether the debt  was 

accepted or rejected in the same manner as originally submitted by the agency.  
b. Transaction File - The department shall post transactions to the debtor’s account daily.  

On a monthly basis, a transaction file will be transmitted to the agency. 
c. Return Debt File - On a monthly  basis, the department shall notify the agency of any 

collection cases that have been determined as uncollectible  
14. The department shall provide a collection performance report upon request by the agency. 
15. Monthly, remittances shall be posted to the agency’s PeopleSoft account or through electronic 

funds transfer (EFT) to the agency’s bank account. 
16. The department shall have collectors available to assist debtors and the agency staff with debt-

related issues.  The department will resolve any debtor disputes pertaining only to the 
department’s collection process and any collections taken by the department. 

17. The department shall have technical staff available to create and maintain electronic file 
layouts, electronic reports, and other requirements as needed.  Agency and department 
contact information will be periodically updated. 

18. The Secretary of the department shall be the final authority in the resolution of any interagency 
disputes in regard to referral of debts.  

19. The department and the agency can agree to other collection services, such as sending notices, 
providing the opportunity to be heard, and filing and managing bankruptcy claims. 

Page 10 of 72



Updated: 6/12/2015 - 5 -  

Legal Requirements 

This agreement is effective upon the signing below of the agency’s and department’s representatives. 
Amendments mutually agreed to by authorized representatives of the agency and the department 
shall become effective when signed and dated as an ADDENDUM to this agreement. The terms of the 
agreement may be renegotiated upon 60 days notice by either party.  
 

 

 

 

Wisconsin Department of Revenue  
 
By  ___________________________________  
 
 
Dated  ________________________________  
 
 

 
 
Agency  
 

 
Agency Name: _________________________ 
 
 
By  __________________________________ 
 
Print Name: ___________________________ 
 
Print Title:  ____________________________ 
 
 
Dated  ________________________________ 
         

Page 11 of 72



  

 COUNTY OF DOOR 
 County Government Center 
 421 Nebraska Street  

Sturgeon Bay, WI  54235 

Ken Pabich 
County Administrator 

(920) 746-2303 
kpabich@co.door.wi.us 

   

MEMORANDUM 
 
 TO:  Members of the County Property Committee 
   Members of the County Airport and Parks Committee 
   Members of the County Highway Committee 
 

FROM:  Ken Pabich, County Administrator 
  Wayne Spritka, Building & Grounds Director 
 

 DATE:  December 6, 2017  
 
 RE:  Recommendation for County Building & Grounds and Airport & Parks Merger 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Background: 

In 2012, the Highway Committee requested Administration to research the possible merger of the Highway 
Department and the Airport & Parks Department.  In the spring of 2016, the Highway Committee requested that 
this analysis be completed as originally requested.  The study concluded with the recommendation that the 
Departments remain separated but Highway provide plowing services to the Parks.   
 
In 2017, it was suggested that analysis be done to see if Airport & Parks be merged with Buildings & Grounds.  
This is a summary and recommendation of this analysis. 
 
Project Approach: 
The project team consisted of the following: 
 Erik Aleson, County Airport & Parks Director  Wayne Spritka, Building & Grounds Director 
 Mark Janiak, Finance Director    Kelly Hendee, Human Resource Director 
 Ken Pabich, County Administrator   John Kolodziej, County Highway Commissioner 
 
Before we even started, we completed a review of what other counties were doing in the State (please see 
Attachment 1).  If you review the attachment you can see that there are many different options.  Based on some 
conversations with various counties, it came down to what works best for them.   
 
Given the initial research, we decided to approach the project with the thought process of what works best for 
Door County.  As part of the analysis, we also looked at Parks and the Airport as separate departments to 
determine if there were any efficiencies to be gained if they were also separated. 
 
Parks Analysis 
While there are many functions of the County Parks, it can be broken down into 5 primary functions which are: 

1. Park Administration 
2. Public Outreach 
3. Park Maintenance 
4. Park Cleaning 
5. Park Security 

Page 12 of 72



Page 2 of 3 

 
If you look at the functions, the maintenance, cleaning and security is a natural fit with Building and Grounds.  
The areas of potential concern would be under Administration and Outreach.  Over the past year, some of the 
Administration has already been transferred to the Property Committee and Building & Grounds Department 
(John Miles Park).   With the Airport & Parks Director position being vacant, it provides an opportunity re-
organize the operations to ensure we meet the needs of the parks. 
 
Recommendations: 

1. We would recommend that the Parks be merged with Building and Grounds and become “Facilities & 
Parks”.   Please see Attachment 2. 

2. Staffing: 
a. The Building & Grounds Director would become the Facilities & Parks Director.  The position would 

be responsible for all facilities including the County Parks. 
b. Instead of replacing the Airport & Parks Director, we would create a Park Superintendent / Assistant 

Facilities Director position.  This position would responsible for the day to day operations of the 
Parks and would also be able to fill-in for the Director as necessary. 

c. Administrative Assistant position would remain but the position would provide support of all 
operations. 

d. Maintenance Technician would also remain with the Parks. 

3. Operations: 
a. Parks administrative operations would be moved to the Government Center once space was made 

available.   
b. Parks maintenance operations and storage would move to John Miles Park. 

 
 
Airport Analysis 
While there are many functions of the Airport, it can be broken down into 2 primary functions which are: 

1. Airport Administration 

2. Airport Maintenance 
 
The Airport Administration is currently handled by the Airport Manager.  Likewise, the maintenance is handled 
by both the Manager and also the Maintenance Technician.  Based on the analysis, the Airport could be on its 
own or be a part of Highway or remain with Parks.  The main issue that needs to be addressed is the ability to 
have backup for staffing (and knowledge transfer). 
 
Recommendations: 

1. We would recommend that the Airport be merged with the Highway Department and become “Highway 
& Airport”.   Please see Attachment 2. 

2. Staffing: 
a. The Airport Manager position would remain. 
b. Highway would hire one additional Highway Worker.  This position would be used to provide 

support at the Highway for plowing, lawn cutting, and maintenance as needed.  The other times the 
Highway Worker would be assigned projects.  There would be a cost to the Airport for the time 
used; however overall we feel the cost will be manageable.  The remaining cost of the positon would 
be net neutral since it would be billable time. 

3. Operations: 
a. Airport operations would remain unchanged.  John Kolodziej would work with staff to obtain more 

cross-training of the Airport operations. 
 
 
 
 

Page 13 of 72



Page 3 of 3 

 
Final Recommendation:  

While some of the above recommendations would be handled at the administrative level, we would need 
approval by the Committees on the following: 

1. The Parks Department be merged with Building and Grounds and become “Parks & Facilities”. 

2. The Airport Department be merged with Highway and become “Highway & Airport”. 

3. The Airport & Parks Director position be eliminated and replaced with a Park Superintendent / Assistant 
Facility Manager position. 

4. The Highway Department would add a Highway Worker position.  There would be some cost to the 
Airport; however the majority of the position cost would be net neutral.   

5. The Park administration be moved to the Government Center once space is available.  Park operation 
and storage be moved to John Miles Park. 

6. The Airport & Parks Committee and the Property Committee continue to meet until April.  In April, the 
rules would be amended to combine the committee to the Facilities and Parks Committee. 

7. The Highway Committee would oversee the airport and rules would be amended as such. 
 

Page 14 of 72



Airport & Parks  
Research from county websites 

1. Where is Parks housed – Separate or Department 
2. Do they have a Facilities / Property or equivalent department.  If yes, please check the page and see if they provide an overview of responsibility (interested if they provide park maintenance). 
3. Where is Airport housed – Separate or Department 
4. Please check the airport page – see if you can see how they are staffed or if it is contracted out 

Attachment 1 

 

County 
 

Where is Parks Housed 
Facilities/ Property 

Dept? 
If yes, overview of responsibility… do they provide park 

maintenance 
Where is Airport 

Housed 
Airport:  How staffed or contracted out Population 

Combined Separate   Combined Separate   

Adams Parks & 
Recreation 

 Bldg & Grounds No No Dept. 
listed 

 There is an Airport Commission w/complete control over the 
Airport.  No Department listed or info on staffing. 

20,875 

Ashland Forestry & 
Recreation 

     Airport under the Hwy budget.  City & County jointly operate JFK 
Memorial Airport.  2 CB members on Airport Commission est. by 
City & County 

16,157 

Barron Maintenance / 
Parks 

Recreation 

 Under 
Maintenance: 

 Parks/Maintenance Coordinator 

 7 Parks Caretakers 

No Dept. 
listed 

 Barron County is served by four public airport facilities located 
near the city of Rice Lake, Barron, Chetek and Cumberland.  

45,870 

Bayfield Forestry & 
Parks Dept. 

 Maintenance Dept. The Forestry & Parks Dept is responsible for the 
management of the county forest, county parks & 
campgrounds, & state-funded snowmobile & ATV trails. 

No Dept. 
listed 

 There is a County Board rep on the Cable Airport Commission 15,014 

Brown        248,007 

Buffalo No Parks 
listed 

   No Dept. 
listed 

  13,587 

Burnett Forest & Parks  Maintenance & 
Grounds 

No … not showing Park maintenance Located 2 
miles 
north of 
Siren, WI 

 Staff directory lists Operations Supervisor 15,457 

Calumet  Parks 
Dept. 

Maintenance No No Dept. 
listed 

 Calumet County is home to the New Holstein Municipal Airport,  48,971 

Chippewa Facilities & 
Parks Division 

   No Dept. 
listed 

 The Chippewa Valley Regional Airport, northern Wisconsin’s 
largest airport, is located on the southern edge of Chippewa 
County.    
All Chippewa Valley Regional Airport employees are employed by 
Eau Claire County 

62,415 

Clark Forestry & 
Parks Dept. 

 Maintenance 
Engineer & 

Janitorial Svc. 

No. Run by 
City of 
Neilsville 

 A handout was distributed giving a history of the Neillsville Airport, 
the benefits to Clark County and information on how the Airport is 
funded. Motion by Supervisor Ashbeck, seconded by Supervisor 
Renderman to draw up a resolution, for the November Board 
agenda, to pledge a yearly $10,000 contribution to the City of 
Neillsville, dedicated for the support of the airport. 
Voice vote, all ayes, motion carried. 

34,690 

Columbia Directory said:  
for more info 

on county 
Parks, contact 
Land & Water 
Cons. Dept. 

   none 
listed…  

 referred to being close to Dane County Airport 56,833 

Crawford No Dept. 
listed. 

 Maintenance/ 
Janitor 

Highway Dept. lists a Parks Operator/Patrolman No Dept 
listed 

 No reference to Airport in County Directory either 16,644 

Dane        488,073 

Page 15 of 72



Airport & Parks  
Research from county websites 

1. Where is Parks housed – Separate or Department 
2. Do they have a Facilities / Property or equivalent department.  If yes, please check the page and see if they provide an overview of responsibility (interested if they provide park maintenance). 
3. Where is Airport housed – Separate or Department 
4. Please check the airport page – see if you can see how they are staffed or if it is contracted out 

Attachment 1 

County 
 

Where is Parks Housed 
Facilities/ Property 

Dept? 
If yes, overview of responsibility… do they provide park 

maintenance 
Where is Airport 

Housed 
Airport:  How staffed or contracted out Population 

Combined Separate   Combined Separate   

Dodge Division of Land 
Resources & 
Parks Dept. 

 Physical Facilities 
Dept. 

No.  X Wisconsin Aviation provides services to the Dodge County Airport 
in the City of Juneau, Wisconsin, under contract with the County. 

88,759 

Door        27,785 

Douglas Forestry, 
Parks and 
Recreation 

 Emergency Mgmt., 
Communications & 

General Services  

No No Dept. 
listed 

  44,159 

Dunn Public Works - 
Facilities & 

Parks Division 

 Public Works - 
Facilities & Parks 

Division 

The Facilities & Parks Division operation is necessary to limit 
the deterioration of existing buildings, parks, and grounds. This 
is accomplished by the Facilities & Parks staff, outside 
contractors, and through Capital Improvement  

The Facilities & Parks Division is responsible for approximately 
443,000 square feet of buildings and approximately 580 acres 
of parks and grounds. 

No Dept. 
listed 

 There are two public airports and one publicly-owned seaplane 
base in Dunn County. The Menomonie Municipal Airport is a 
Transport/Corporate classification airport owned by the City of 
Menomonie. The airport has two runways.  Boyceville Municipal 
Airport is classified as a Basic Utility-B (BU-B) airport with an 
asphalt runway which is 3,300 feet in length. 

48,857 

Eau Claire        98,736 

Florence        4,423 

Fond du Lac        101,623 

Forest        9,304 

Grant No Dept listed 
(2 state parks) 

   No Dept. 
listed 

  51,208 

Green Building & 
Grounds 

Maintenance 

 Building & 
Grounds 

Maintenance 

Building and Grounds Maintenance for:  

 Green County Courthouse  

 Pleasant View Farm  

 Pleasant View Park  

 Clarence Bridge Park 

No Dept. 
listed 

  36,842 

Green Lake Maintenance 
& Parks 

 Maintenance & 
Parks 

The Maintenance Department is responsible for the 
maintenance & operation of all Green Lake County buildings, 
building facilities & the equipment to operate those facilities. 

  The County has no airports however, has airfield location data  19,051 

Iowa Land 
Conservation 

Dept. 

  Blackhawk Lake Recreation Area is owned by the WI DNR with an 
operational easement granted to Iowa County. The DNR has 
jurisdiction of the lake and designated wildlife areas. The Cobb-
Highland Recreation Commission oversees the operations of the 
recreational area. This Commission consists of ten board members, 
five each from the Villages of Cobb and Highland. Blackhawk Lake 
Recreation Area is not part of the Wisconsin State Park System, and 
therefore, does not receive any funding from State or County tax 
dollars. 

The Iowa County Land Conservation Committee (LCC) and the LCD 
are the primary liaisons between Iowa County and the Cobb -
Highland Commission (Blackhawk Lake Park) and the Village of 
Barneveld (Birch Lake Park). 

 Tri-County 
Airport 

The County Boards of Iowa, Richland and Sauk County have 
agreed to jointly own and operate that Airport known as the "Tri-
County Airport," 
The Iowa County Clerk shall manage the keeping of the accounts 
of the Airport Commission. (Details are spelled out in the Tri-
County Agreement) 

23,687 

Iron        5,916 

Page 16 of 72

http://www.co.dunn.wi.us/facilitiesparks
http://www.co.dunn.wi.us/facilitiesparks
http://www.co.dunn.wi.us/facilitiesparks
http://www.co.dunn.wi.us/facilitiesparks
http://www.co.dunn.wi.us/facilitiesparks
http://www.co.dunn.wi.us/facilitiesparks


Airport & Parks  
Research from county websites 

1. Where is Parks housed – Separate or Department 
2. Do they have a Facilities / Property or equivalent department.  If yes, please check the page and see if they provide an overview of responsibility (interested if they provide park maintenance). 
3. Where is Airport housed – Separate or Department 
4. Please check the airport page – see if you can see how they are staffed or if it is contracted out 

Attachment 1 

County 
 

Where is Parks Housed 
Facilities/ Property 

Dept? 
If yes, overview of responsibility… do they provide park 

maintenance 
Where is Airport 

Housed 
Airport:  How staffed or contracted out Population 

Combined Separate   Combined Separate   

Jackson Forestry and 
Parks 

  All staff are listed under Forestry & Parks  In City of 
Black 
River Falls 

The Airport Commission shall have complete and exclusive control and 
management of the Black River Falls Airport. All monies appropriated for 
the construction, improvement, equipment, maintenance, or operation of 
the Airport, managed as provided by Section 114.14(2), or earned by the 
Airport or made available for its construction, improvement, equipment, 
maintenance, or operation in any manner whatsoever, shall be deposited 
with the Treasurer for the City of Black River Falls where such money shall 
be kept in a special fund, paid out only on order of the Airport Commission, 
drawn and signed by the Secretary and countersigned by the Chairperson; 

20,449 

Jefferson  X 
Parks 

 All staff listed under Parks Dept. No Dept. 
listed 

  83,686 

Juneau Land, Forestry 
& Parks 

 Maintenance No No Dept. 
listed 

 No hits on Airport search. 26,664 

Kenosha        166,426 

Kewaunee Promotions & 
Rec. Dept. 

 Maintenance No No Dept. 
listed 

  20,574 

LaCrosse        114,638 

Lafayette Planning & 
Zoning 

   No Dept. 
listed 

  16,836 

Langlade Forestry & 
Recreation 

  The facilities in all parks, special recreation areas and 
waysides shall be maintained by the Department during the 
camping season. Outside of that season, the only facilities 
that will be maintained by the Department shall be ski trails 
and County snowmobile trails. 

 X 
In Antigo 

No staff info listed 19,977 

Lincoln Forestry, Land 
& Parks 

 Maintenance Maintenance is responsible for the Fair Grounds No Dept. 
listed 

  28,743 

Manitowoc  X 
Parks 

Public Works Dept. Expo Center Division 

 Coordinates and operates annual Manitowoc County Fair 

 Manages rentals of various Buildings (& Grounds) at the 
Expo Center 

 Provides winter storage for RV’s boats, Cars, etc.. 

 Manitowoc 
County 
Airport, 1815 
Freedom 
Way, 
Manitowoc 

No staff listed other than Director 81,442 

Marathon        134,063 

Marinette  X 
Parks 

Maintenance & 
Facilities 

No No Dept. 
listed. 

  41,749 

Marquette Parks & Rural 
Planning 

 Building & 
Grounds 

No No Dept. 
listed 

  15,404 

Menominee        4,232 

Milwaukee        947,735 

Monroe Parks & 
Forestry 

 Maintenance No No Dept. 
listed 

  44,673 

Oconto Land & Water 
Resources --  
Forest, Parks 
& Recreation 

Division 

 Maintenance No No Dept. 
listed 

 There is an Airport Commission listed under ‘Area Agencies’, but 
no reference to staff. 

37,660 

Page 17 of 72

https://www.google.com/maps?f=q&source=s_q&hl=en&geocode&q=1815+Freedom+Way,+Manitowoc+WI&sll=44.086968,-87.659213&sspn=0.007229,0.013754&ie=UTF8&hq&hnear=1815+Freedom+Way,+Manitowoc,+Wisconsin+54220&z=16
https://www.google.com/maps?f=q&source=s_q&hl=en&geocode&q=1815+Freedom+Way,+Manitowoc+WI&sll=44.086968,-87.659213&sspn=0.007229,0.013754&ie=UTF8&hq&hnear=1815+Freedom+Way,+Manitowoc,+Wisconsin+54220&z=16
https://www.google.com/maps?f=q&source=s_q&hl=en&geocode&q=1815+Freedom+Way,+Manitowoc+WI&sll=44.086968,-87.659213&sspn=0.007229,0.013754&ie=UTF8&hq&hnear=1815+Freedom+Way,+Manitowoc,+Wisconsin+54220&z=16


Airport & Parks  
Research from county websites 

1. Where is Parks housed – Separate or Department 
2. Do they have a Facilities / Property or equivalent department.  If yes, please check the page and see if they provide an overview of responsibility (interested if they provide park maintenance). 
3. Where is Airport housed – Separate or Department 
4. Please check the airport page – see if you can see how they are staffed or if it is contracted out 

Attachment 1 

County 
 

Where is Parks Housed 
Facilities/ Property 

Dept? 
If yes, overview of responsibility… do they provide park 

maintenance 
Where is Airport 

Housed 
Airport:  How staffed or contracted out Population 

Combined Separate   Combined Separate   

Oneida Forestry & 
Outdoor 

Recreation 

 Building & 
Grounds 

No  Rhinelander Airport is owned by City of Rhinelander and Oneida County.  A 
Manager is employed by the Commission to administer and 
enforce all airport ordinances, leases, agreements, rules and 
regulations. 

35,998 

Outagamie        176,695 

Ozaukee Planning & 
Parks 

 Public Works No No Dept. 
listed 

  86,395 

Pepin        7,469 

Pierce  X Maintenance No No Dept. 
listed 

  41,019 

Polk Parks & 
Recreation 

   No Dept. 
listed 

  44,205 

Portage  X Facilities 
Management 

Apparently not No Dept. 
listed. 

 The Central Wisconsin Airport (CWA) is a regional non-hub 
airport located in Mosinee, WI roughly equidistant between 
Stevens Point and Wausau.  The airport is owned by Marathon 
and Portage Counties and is governed by the Central Wisconsin 
Joint Airport Board.  It is currently served by three airlines, Delta, 
American and United Airlines, and operates 10 daily departures. 

70,019 

Price Forestry & 
Parks 

 Building & 
Grounds 

Apparently not  Phillips County lists Manager and Airport Operations Technician 14,159 

Racine        195,408 

Richland Parks / 
Recreation / 

Grounds 

 Under 
Administrative 

Services 

No  Tri-County 
Airport 

The County Boards of Iowa, Richland and Sauk County have 
agreed to jointly own and operate that Airport known as the "Tri-
County Airport,"   The Iowa County Clerk shall manage the 
keeping of the accounts of the Airport Commission. (Details are 
spelled out in the Tri-County Agreement) 

18,021 

Rock        160,331 

Rusk Parks 
Manager 

under Forestry 
Dept. 

  No  Building & 
Grounds / 
Airport 

Staff are listed under the department 14,755 

Sauk Parks & 
Recreation 

 Building Services No.   
(Interesting that Sauk charges park fees …. daily or annual) 

 Tri-County 
Airport 

The County Boards of Iowa, Richland and Sauk County have 
agreed to jointly own and operate that Airport known as the "Tri-
County Airport," 
The Iowa County Clerk shall manage the keeping of the accounts 
of the Airport Commission. (Details are spelled out in the Tri-
County Agreement) 

61,976 

Sawyer Forestry 
(no Parks listed) 

 Maintenance & 
Custodial 

No  Airport in 
Hayward 

Staff listed under Airport Department 16,557 

Shawano  X Building 
Maintenance 

Apparently not No Dept. 
listed 

 No reference in search of website 41,949 

Sheboygan        111,507 

Page 18 of 72



Airport & Parks  
Research from county websites 

1. Where is Parks housed – Separate or Department 
2. Do they have a Facilities / Property or equivalent department.  If yes, please check the page and see if they provide an overview of responsibility (interested if they provide park maintenance). 
3. Where is Airport housed – Separate or Department 
4. Please check the airport page – see if you can see how they are staffed or if it is contracted out 

Attachment 1 

County 
 

Where is Parks Housed 
Facilities/ Property 

Dept? 
If yes, overview of responsibility… do they provide park 

maintenance 
Where is Airport 

Housed 
Airport:  How staffed or contracted out Population 

Combined Separate   Combined Separate   

St. Croix Community 
Development – 
Parks Division 

 Facilities Dept. 
only provides 
services to the 

buildings and their 
grounds 

The mission of the Parks Division is to acquire, develop and 
maintain an attractive, creative, efficient, responsive and 
interpretive park system that enriches the physical, mental, social 
and economic health of all citizens, while protecting, conserving 
and enhancing natural, historical, cultural and threatened 
resources.  (Note – St. Croix charges park fees ..daily or annual 

No Dept. 
listed 

 Minneapolis-St. Paul International Airport is approximately 25 
miles away from St. Croix County. 

84,345 

Taylor Buildings, 
Grounds & 

Park 
Maintenance 

 Building, Grounds 
& Park 

Maintenance 

Yes…. responsibility of the daily maintenance, upkeep and special 
renovation projects in Courthouse, Annex, Human Svcs Bldg, 
Education Ctr, USDA Svc Ctr, Multi-Purpose Bldg, Fairgrounds, 

operating systems & surrounding grounds. Maintenance staff is 
responsible for the maintenance & development of the county 
parks system, its buildings, docks, boat landings & grounds. 
Also resp. for maintenance & operation of the Perkinstown 
Winter Sports Area. 

 Airport in 
Medford 

The Airport Manager is responsible for all aspects of management and 
operation of the airport. Some of the duties include compliance with 
federal, state and local regulations; oversee daily operations; ensure 
operation of all navaids; issue NOTAMS; oversee construction activity; 
fuel corporate and general aviation aircraft; and perform grounds and 
snow removal operations. 

20,689 

Trempealeau No reference 
to Parks Dept. 

found on 
website 

 Maintenance Appears to be one Park – Pietrek Park, taken care of by 
volunteers. Park Committee is listed as inactive….. Now there 
is Parks, Tourism and Economic Development Committee 

No Dept. 
listed. 

  28,816 

Vernon Land and Water 
Conservation 
Department -  

Parks and 
Forests Division 

 Building & 
Facilities Dept. 

Parks and Forests Division manages and maintains over 1,800 
acres of park land and forest land, containing more than 31 
miles of multi-use trail offering a multitude of leisure time 
pursuits. 
The Buildings & Facilities dept maintains the landscape and grounds 
as well as performing routine maintenance and cleaning of the 
buildings and outlying areas. 

No Dept. 
listed. 

  29,773 

Vilas Forestry, Rec. 
& Land Dept., 

Parks & 
Recreation Div. 

 Maintenance No No Dept. 
listed. 

  21,430 

Walworth        102,228 

Washburn Forestry Dept 
(no reference 

to Parks) 

 Maintenance No No Dept. 
listed. 

 No reference in search of website 15,911 

Washington        131,887 

Waukeska        389,891 

Waupaca Parks & 
Recreation 

  All staff listed under Parks & Recreation No Dept. 
listed 

  52,410 

Waushara  X Buildings / 
Grounds 

No No Dept. 
listed 

  24,496 

Winnebago        166,994 

Wood Parks & 
Forestry 

 Maintenance & 
Purchasing 

No - Excludes Parks and Highway Dept. No Dept. 
listed 

  74,749 

 

Page 19 of 72



Parks
Existing

County 
Administrator

Airport & Parks 
Director

Airport Manager

Season Worker

Maintenance 
Technician

Seasonal Workers

A&P

Committee

Administrative 
Assistant II

Attachment 2Page 20 of 72



Property
Existing

County 
Administrator

Building & 
Grounds Director

Maintenance 
Division

5 Fulltime

Technicians

Custodial 
Division

7.5 Fulltime 
Custodians

Property

Committee

Attachment 2Page 21 of 72



Proposed Organization

County 
Administrator

Highway 
Commissioner

Airport 
Superintendent

Seasonal Worker

Facilities & Parks 
Director

Park 
Superintendent / 

Assistant 
Facilities 
Director

Maintenance 
Division

5 Fulltime 
Technicians

Custodial 
Division

7.5 Fulltime 
Custodians

Parks Division

1 Fulltime 
Technician

Seasonal 
Workers

Facilities & Parks 
Committee 

(New)

Administrative 
Assistant II

Highway & 
Airport 

Committee

Attachment 2Page 22 of 72



Attachment 3 
 

 Duties of Committees     Page 1 of 1 

(7)  Airport & Parks Committee 
Oversight for Door County Parks and Cherryland Airport. 

1. Serve as oversight committee for Cherryland Airport and all County Parks in a manner that is generally 
consistent with Sections 27.02-27.075 Wisconsin Statutes. 

2. Serve as liaison between the Airport and Parks Department and the County Board. 
3. Enter into leases, rental and contractual agreements with all parties as authorized by the County Board. 
4. Authorize all new construction with regard to the Airport and Parks, as approved by the County Board. 
5. Oversight for the purchase of vehicles and equipment for operation of the Airport and Parks. 
6. Work with the Property Committee to facilitate improvements to John Miles Park. 
 

(5)  Highway & Airport Committee (Section 83.015 Wisconsin Statutes) 
Oversight for Highway & Airport Department 

 

1. An elective body, consistent with Section 83.015(1) Wisconsin Statutes 

2. The policy-making body, charged with determining the broad outlines and principles governing 
administration of the county highway department. 

3. Possessed of powers and duties as set forth in Section 83.015(2) (a) & (b) Wisconsin Statutes. 

4. Oversee  the cost accounting system as set forth in Section 83.015(3) (a) – (d) Wisconsin Statutes 

5. Oversee the solid waste management and/or recycling or resource recovery as directed by the County 
Board, consistent with Sections 59.70(2) & (3) Wisconsin Statutes. This includes exercising the authority 
and assuming the duties of the solid waste management board (See: Door County Ordinance 2-82 and 
Chapter 22, Door County Code). 

6. May review and countenance the Highway Department’s Annual Report, prior to its submission to the 
County Board. 

7. Act as a liaison between the County Highway & Airport Department and County Board. 

8. Serve as oversight committee for Cherryland Airport. 

9. Enter into leases, rental and contractual agreements with all parties as authorized by the County Board. 

10. Authorize all new construction with regard to the Airport as approved by the County Board. 

11. Oversight for the purchase of vehicles and equipment for operation of the Airport. 
 

(7)  Property Committee Facilities and Parks Committee 
Oversight for Maintenance (Building & Grounds) Department Oversight of County Facilities and Parks 

1. Serve as oversight committee of buildings and grounds of the County and the departments responsible for 
their operation, if not designated to another committee, to include Government Center, Justice Center, 
Library, Museum, Highway, John Miles Park, Door County ADRC and Emergency Services and Veterans 
Memorial and all County Parks. 

2. Serve as oversight committee for all County Parks in a manner that is generally consistent with Sections 
27.02-27.075 Wisconsin Statutes. 

3. Acquire and hold, lease or rent, convey real and personal property for public uses or purposes as 
authorized by the County Board. 

4. Oversight for the purchase of all vehicles, building machinery and equipment, unless specifically delegated 
to another committee or department. 

5. Oversight of all repair, maintenance and remodeling of County owned buildings, including government 
surplus property. 

6. Oversight of new construction on all county owned property, unless specifically delegated to another 
committee. 

7. Authorized to lease or rent unused space in County facilities. 
8. Oversight of all County machinery and equipment not designated to another committee or department. 
9. Authorize the sale, trade or disposal of all surplus obsolete equipment and machinery deemed no longer 

useful to the County. 
10. Authorize the sale, trade or disposal of all surplus or obsolete real or personal property following County 

policy. 
11. Provide general oversight of, and through the Fair Board and Fair Officers, provide for and conduct the Door 

county Fair. The Forgoing is subject to the regulations set forth in Sections 59.56(14) and 93.23 Wisconsin 
Statues, and Chapter ATCP 160 Wisconsin Administrative Code. 

Page 23 of 72



Page 24 of 72



Page 25 of 72



Page 26 of 72



Page 27 of 72



Page 28 of 72



Page 29 of 72



Page 30 of 72



Page 31 of 72



Page 32 of 72



Page 33 of 72



Page 34 of 72



EMERGENCY SERVICES – CAPTAINS POSITION  
COMPENSATION AND PAID TIME OFF (PTO) 
December 7, 2017 

 
 

2017 Compensation Structure: 

Hours Min 87.5% Step 2 90% Step 3 92.5% Step 4 95.0% Step 5 97.5% Step 6 100% 
Max 
115% 

2080 $22.56 $23.20 $23.85 $24.49 $25.14 $25.78 $29.65 

832 $33.84 $34.80 $35.76 $36.74 $37.71 $38.67 $44.48 

Annual: $75,079.68 $77,209.60 $79,360.32 $81,506.88 $83,665.92 $85,795.84 $98,679 

 
 

Paid Time Off - (PTO): 
 

Emergency Services Captains (2912 Hours Worked Annually) PTO 

Completed 
Years of 
Service 

Bi-
Weekly 
Accrual Maximum Annual Accrual Limit Maximum Annual Use 

Hours Days Weeks Hours Days Weeks Hours 

0 - 4.99 8.19 8.87 1.77 212.94 13.31 2.66 319.41 

5 - 10.99 10.33 11.19 2.24 268.63 16.79 3.36 402.95 

11 - 16.99 12.49 13.53 2.71 324.69 20.29 4.06 487.03 

17 or more 14.64 15.86 3.17 380.74 23.80 4.76 571.12 

        
Note: 2912 annual hours is 140% of 2080 annual hours; amounts shown in "Bi-Weekly Accrual 
Hours" are equal to 140% of the amounts approved in the current 2.10 PTO policy for full-time 
employees. 

 

Page 35 of 72



Page 36 of 72



Page 37 of 72



Page 38 of 72



Page 39 of 72



Page 40 of 72



Page 41 of 72



Page 42 of 72



Page 43 of 72



Page 44 of 72



Page 45 of 72



Page 46 of 72



Page 47 of 72



Page 48 of 72



Page 49 of 72



Page 50 of 72



Page 51 of 72



Page 52 of 72



Page 53 of 72



Page 54 of 72



ROLL CALL 
Board Members 

Aye Nay Exc. 

AUSTAD    

BACON    

D. ENGLEBERT    

R. ENGLEBERT     

ENIGL    

FISHER    

GUNNLAUGSSON    

HALSTEAD    

KOCH    

KOHOUT    

LIENAU    

LUNDAHL    

MOELLER    

NEINAS    

ROBILLARD    

SCHULTZ    

SITTE    

SOHNS    

VIRLEE    

VLIES WOTACHEK    

WAIT    

    

    

BOARD ACTION 

Vote Required: Majority Vote of Total Membership  

 
 

Motion to Approve Adopted   

 

1st  Defeated   

2nd    

Yes:   No:   Exc:   

 
 

 Reviewed by: 

 , Corp. Counsel 

 Reviewed by: 

 , Administrator 

 FISCAL IMPACT: Door County’s 
proportionate share of the construction 
cost is included in the 2017 budget for 
$330,000.00, and Door County’s 
proportionate share of the maintenance 
cost for 2018 is included in the 2018 
budget for $25,000.00; Door County’s 
proportionate share of the maintenance 
costs for future years will be included in 
each future year’s budget.  MEJ 

 
Certification: 

I, Jill M. Lau, Clerk of Door County, hereby certify 
that the above is a true and correct copy of a 
resolution that was adopted on the 19th day 
of    December, 2017 by the Door County Board 
of Supervisors. 
 
 

 
Jill M. Lau 
County Clerk, Door County  

  

Resolution No. 2017-___ 

Intergovernmental Agreement- Fiber Optic Network / Utility  

 

TO THE DOOR COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 
 

 WHEREAS, Rule No. 34 of the Rules of Order provides, in pertinent part, 1 

that “...no Committee of the County Board shall enter into any contract for a 2 

period in excess of three (3) years without prior approval of the County 3 

Board…”; and 4 

 5 

 WHEREAS, The City of Sturgeon Bay (“City”), Door County (“County”), 6 

and Northeast Wisconsin Technical College (“NWTC”) may contract with each 7 

other for the joint exercise of any power or duty authorized by law; and 8 

 9 

 WHEREAS, The City, County and NWTC are empowered and wish to 10 

develop and share utilization of a fiber optic network / utility within the City of 11 

Sturgeon Bay, and each has appropriated funds for this purpose; and   12 

 13 

 WHEREAS, There is demonstrated need for, and clear fiscal benefit to 14 

develop and share utilization of, the contemplated fiber optic network; and     15 

 16 

 WHEREAS, The proposed Intergovernmental Agreement (attached 17 

hereto and incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full) represents a 18 

collaborative and cooperative effort by the City, County and NWTC to develop 19 

and share utilization of a fiber optic network, and is deemed advantageous to 20 

the County.  21 

 22 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Door County Board of 23 

Supervisors does hereby approve the proposed Intergovernmental 24 

Agreement.  25 

 26 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Technology Services Director, 27 

subject to the oversight of the County Administrator, shall administer the 28 

Intergovernmental Agreement. 29 

SUBMITTED BY:  ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

David Lienau, Chairman  John Neinas 

Ken Fisher  Kathy Schultz 

Dan Austad  Richard Virlee 

Joel Gunnlaugsson   

 

Page 55 of 72



1  

  

   
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT   

[Community Area Network]  

   
This Agreement is made this 1st day of December, 2017 by and between the County of Door ("County"), City of 
Sturgeon Bay (“City”), and Northeast Wisconsin Technical College (“NWTC”), each a public body corporate within 
the State of Wisconsin.    

Whereas, the intergovernmental cooperation contemplated herein serves legitimate public purposes, including 
enhancement of the technology capability of the County, City and NWTC; and   

Whereas, this Agreement is deemed to be of benefit to each of the parties and is consistent with their powers or 
duties under law.   

It is therefore agreed as follows:   

1. This is an intergovernmental Agreement consistent with Section 66.0301, Wisconsin Statutes  

2. This Agreement shall become effective on this 1st day of December, 2017, and shall be effective for a period 
of five (5) years, unless sooner terminated as provided in this Agreement.   

3. This Agreement will be automatically extended for consecutive five (5) year terms unless a party notifies the 
others in writing of their intent to withdraw or terminate no more than one hundred and eighty (180) days 
and at least ninety (90) days before expiration.  

4. The parties hereto will develop a Community Area Network (“CAN”), interchangeably termed a “utility”. This 
involves the design, construction, operation, ongoing maintenance and repair, and possible expansion of a 
fiber optic network.  This fiber optic network is described in Addendum A, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference as if fully set forth.  

5. Access Engineering, LLC has been engaged as the network engineering consultant and for project 
management. The estimated cost of these services, project budget summary, and method of allocating 

project costs between the parties is set forth in Addendum B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference as if fully set forth. County will be invoiced and pay for the work directly, and then will invoice the 
City and School District for their respective shares of the cost.    

6. The Sturgeon Bay School District (“School District”) will participate under separate agreement, consistent 

with the mandates of the E-Rate program (a federal program, administered by USAC under the direction of 

the FCC). Costs associated with E-Rate work are the responsibility of the School District.  

7. Each party has an interest in, and shares the responsibility of, keeping the CAN up and running. County will 
assume the primary responsibility for oversight, management and coordination of such.    

8. The cost of operation, ongoing preventive or routine maintenance, repair, relocation, replacement and 
improvement of the CAN will be allocated between the County, City, and NWTC based on the segments / 
percentages as set forth in Addendum B.   

9. Each party is solely responsible for the costs (including purchase, installation, maintenance, repair, 
relocation, and replacement) of the laterals, hardware and software necessary to connect their facilities to 
the CAN.  

10. Each party is responsible to designate an employee or official (“contact person”), who is responsible for 
administration of this Agreement. The contact persons are as follows:  

a. County:  

Jason Rouer, Technology Services Director  

920.746.5983; jrouer@co.door.wi.us  

b. City:  

NAME  

Page 56 of 72



2  

  

CONTACT INFORMATION  

  

c. NWTC  

Karl Reischl, IIT Technical Director  

920.498.6933 (Desk); 920.410.5207 (Cell) 

karl.reischl@nwtc.edu 

Contact person may be changed upon prior written notice to the other parties.  

11. The parties hereto agree to exercise good faith, make reasonable efforts, and take whatever cooperative 
action is necessary to fulfill the intent and purposes of this Agreement. This includes the negotiation and 
execution of an Indefeasible Right of Use (“IRU”), concurrent with final design and construction of the CAN.   

12. Any notices required or permitted hereunder shall be given in writing and shall be delivered (a) in person, 
with proof of service (b) by certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, (c) by registered mail, 
postage prepaid, with evidence of safe delivery from the U.S. Postal Service or (d) by a commercial overnight 
courier that guarantees next day delivery and provides a receipt, and such notices shall be addressed as 
follows:   

  

FOR THE COUNTY  

County Administrator   

County Government Center   

421 Nebraska Street   

Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin 54235   

  

FOR THE CITY  

City Administrator   

City Hall  

421 Michigan Street  

Sturgeon Bay, WI 54235  

  

FOR NWTC  

IIT Technical Director  

2740 West Mason Street 
Green Bay, WI 54303  

  

Any notice shall be effective upon delivery.  

13. Expansion of the CAN may occur, consistent with the spirit and purposes of this Agreement, upon the prior 
written consent of the parties. Such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

14. Any party may terminate this Agreement for cause, if another party materially breaches any covenant or 
obligation set forth in this Agreement, and the terminating party: a) provides written notice of such to the 
breaching party; b) affords the breaching party a reasonable opportunity to cure such breach; and c) there is 
an ongoing material breach for a period of forty five (45) days after written notice is delivered. In the event 
of termination under this paragraph, the breaching party surrenders any and all interest, privilege or right in 
and to the CAN.  

15. Any party who voluntarily withdraws from or terminates this agreement under paragraph 3. above: a) is not 
entitled to a return of any asset or resource they contributed toward the CAN; b) must cease use of the CAN 
concurrent with the effective date of the withdraw or termination; and c) may apply for continued use of the 
CAN, and the remaining parties will give all due consideration to the application in light of the spirit of this 
Agreement and its purposes.     

16. The waiver by a party of any breach or failure of the other party to perform any covenant or obligation 
contained in this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach.    

Page 57 of 72

mailto:karl.reischl@nwtc.edu


3  

  

17. If a dispute between any part hereto arises out of or relating to this Agreement, and cannot be settled 
through direct discussions, each party agrees to first endeavor to settle the dispute by alternative dispute 
resolution before recourse to a court.     

18. If any covenant, condition, provision, or term of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable by a 
court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining covenants, conditions, provision, or terms of this Agreement 
shall not be affected thereby, but each covenant, condition, provision, or term of this Agreement shall be 
valid and in force to the fullest extent permitted by law.     

19. Parties irrevocably submit themselves to the original jurisdiction of the Circuit Court, County of Door, State of 
Wisconsin, with regard to any controversy arising out of, relating to, or in any way concerning this 
agreement.   

20. This Agreement shall be subject and subordinate to applicable federal or state, laws, codes, regulations, 
ordinances, rules and orders.   

21. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of 
this Agreement.  Any amendments, changes or modification of this agreement shall be effective only when  
made in writing and executed by the parties.

 

 

Accepted and agreed this ___ day of December, 2017.   

   

_________________________________________   

Josh VanLieshout, City Administrator   

City of Sturgeon Bay   

   

  

Sworn and subscribed to before me  

this __________________________   

   

______________________________   

Notary Public   

My commission expires ___________.   

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

Accepted and agreed this ___ day of December, 2017.   

  

  

 _________________________________________   

Thad Birmingham Mayor  

City of Sturgeon Bay   

  

  

Sworn and subscribed to before me this 

__________________________   

______________________________   

 Notary Public      

My commission expires ___________.   

  

 

Accepted and agreed this ___ day of December, 2017.    

   

  

 _________________________________________   

Ken Pabich  

County Administrator   

County of Door   

  

   

Sworn and subscribed to before me   

this __________________________   

   

______________________________   

Notary Public   

My commission expires ___________.   

  

Accepted and agreed this ___ day of December, 2017.    

  

  

  ______________________________________________  

David Lienau, Supervisor, District 20    

County Board Chairperson   

County of Door   

  

  

Sworn and subscribed to before me this 

__________________________   

  

______________________________    

Notary Public   

My commission expires ___________.   

Accepted and agreed this ___ day of December, 2017.   

Page 58 of 72



4  

  

   

Accepted and agreed this ___ day of December, 2017. 

  

 

 

_________________________________________   

Robert A. Mathews, Vice President, Business & Finance 

Northeast Wisconsin Technical College  

   

  

Sworn and subscribed to before me  this 

__________________________   

   

______________________________   

Notary Public   

My commission expires ___________.   

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
   

Page 59 of 72



Acct No. Vendor Description Amount Prepaid

52412 DDC DNA DIAGNOSTICS PATERNITY BLOOD TESTS $99.00

53106 STAPLES ADVANTAGE OFFICE SUPPLIES $345.22

PRE-PAID

52302 DOOR COUNTY SHERIFF SERVICE CONTRACT $65.00 JE

54102 ELAN MILEAGE, MEALS & LODGING $492.00

TOTAL: $1,001.22

I hereby approve payment of the

monthly bills for the 

CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT AGENCY

as listed on this document.

Date:

Chairman

Administrative Services Committee

DECEMBER 2017  Administrative Services Committee Meeting

CHILD SUPPORT OFFICE VOUCHERS

Page 60 of 72



Page 61 of 72



Page 62 of 72



Page 63 of 72



Fund-Dept-Sub-Acct. Vendor Description Amount

100-14-1107-52101 PROFESSSIONAL

100-14-1107-52105 LITIGATION

JE Door County Sheriff's Office 2017-367 17 GN 21 Civil Service Fee $65.00

JE Door County Sheriff's Office 2017-405 17 ME 48 Civil Service Fee $65.00

100-14-1107-54406 TELEPHONE

100-14-1107-52301 REPAIR/MAINTENANCE

100-14-1107-52402 MEMBERSHIP

100-14-1107-53102 POSTAGE

100-14-1107-53106 OFFICE SUPPLIES

Staples Business Advantage General Office Supplies $36.99

100-14-1107-53131 LEGAL RESEARCH

Thomson Reuters-West Payment Center Rule Books Federal, State and Local Updates $130.50

State of Wisconsin Rules of Evidence supplementation $156.23

Thomson Reuters-West Payment Center West Information Charges October, 2017 $1,234.69

100-14-1107-54101 CONFERENCE FEES AND TRAINING

100-14-1107-54102 TRAINING MILES, MEALS, LODGING

100-14-1305-52401 COUNSELING CONTRACTED SERVICES

Gay Pustaver October Mediation Services $1,875.00

Gay Pustaver November Medition Services $525.00

100-14-1350-53109 LAW LIBRARY

Thomson Reuters-West Payment Center West Information Charges October, 2017 $217.12

TOTAL: $4,305.53

December Committee Meeting
CORPORATION COUNSEL OFFICE

Page 64 of 72



Page 65 of 72



Page 66 of 72



Page 67 of 72



Page 68 of 72



Page 69 of 72



Page 70 of 72



Acct No. Vendor Description Amount

52408 Patrick L. Zelzer & Assoc. Process Service Fees $100.00

53106 Staples - DA Supples $879.94

53183 Staples - VW Toner $51.06

TOTAL: $1,031.00

VOUCHER LISTING:  

DOOR COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE

Page 71 of 72



Acct No. Vendor Description Amount Prepaid

55107 WI Document Imaging Copy Machine Bill $213.97 x

58129 Abby Vans Travel Vouchers $97.50 x

52206 Cellcom Monthly Cellcom Charges $174.76 x

58129 Door-Tran, Inc. Veteran Trip to Milwaukee $237.00 x

53106 Staples Advantage Office Supplies $65.36 x

TOTAL: $788.59

I hereby approve payment of the
monthly bills for the 
VETERANS SERVICE OFFICE
as listed on this document.

Date:

David Lienau, Chairman
Administrative Committee

November 30th, 2017 Administrative Committee Meeting
VETERANS SERVICE OFFICE VOUCHERS

Page 72 of 72


	2017-12-12 Administrative Agenda
	2017-11-07 Administrative Minutes
	2017-11-14 Administrative Minutes
	Collections letter to D.L. Admin Committee - CofC
	State Debt Collection Agreement - CofC
	Merger_Dec2017+Attachments
	Merger_Dec2017
	Attachment_1
	Attachment_2
	Attachment_3

	GIS Addressing and Land Records Specialist position creation
	2017-12-07 Admin Comm re Rev to Emp Handbook-Admin-Manual-DCES Captain-WITH ATTACHMENT
	2017-12-07 Admin Comm re Rev to Emp Handbook-Admin-Manual-DCES Captain Position
	EMS Captains Pay Structure and PTO - 2017

	HR BACKUP
	Resolution 2017-___ Intergovernmental Agreement - SB Fiber Optic Network (Utility)
	Intergovernmental Agreement - CAN Fiber Optic Network Dec 5 2017
	Voucher listing - Child Support
	Voucher Listing - CofC
	Voucher Listing - CofC 2
	Voucher Listing - CofC 3
	Voucher Listing - Corp Counsel
	Voucher Listing - County Clerk
	Voucher Listing - County Clerk 2
	Voucher Listing - Courts
	Voucher Listing - Courts 2
	Voucher Listing - Courts 3
	Voucher Listing - DA
	Voucher Listing - Veterans



